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STATE OF M SSOURI

PUBLI C SERVI CE COWM SSI ON

In the Matter of the Application
of Grain Belt Express LLC for an
Amendnent to its Certificate of
Conveni ence and Necessity

Aut horizing it to Construct, Own,
perate, Control, Mnage, and

Mai ntain a H gh Vol tage, D rect
Current Transm ssion Line and
Associ ated Converter Station

Fil e No.
EA- 2023- 0017

N N N N N N N N N N N N N

The above-entitled matter cane on for a Public
Heari ng before the Public Service Comm ssion and the
Honor abl e Nancy Dippell, Chief Regul atory Law
Judge, on the 6th day of March, 2023, wth al

att endees appearing via WebEx, commencing at 6:00 p. m

Taken by:
Christine M d ark, RPR

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
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WEBEX APPEARANCES

M SSCURI PUBLI C SERVI CE COWM SSI ON:

Scott Rupp, Chairman

Mai da Col enan, Conm ssi oner
Jason Hol sman, Commi ssi oner
d en Kol kneyer, Comm ssi oner

FOR THE STAFF OF THE M SSOURI PUBLI C SERVI CE
COW SSI ON:

THE STAFF COUNSEL DEPARTMENT
Eric Vandergriff, Esquire
200 Madi son Street, Suite 800

PO Box 360
Jefferson Gty Mssouri 65102
Emai | : staffcounsel servi ce@sc. nb. gov

OFFI CE OF THE PUBLI C COUNSEL
Nat han Wl Ilians, Esquire
200 Madi son Street, Suite 650

PO Box 2230
Jefferson Cty, Mssouri 65102
Emai |l : opcservi ce@pc. no. gov

FOR THE APPLI CANT GRAI N BELT EXPRESS LLC:

POLSI NELLI PC

Anne E. Cal |l enbach, Esquire

Andrew Schulte, Esquire

900 West 48th Place, Suite 900

Kansas City, M ssouri 64112

Enai | : acal | enbach@ol sinelli.com
aschul te@ol sinelli.com

FOR THE AGRI CULTURAL ASSOCI ATl ONS:

THE LAW FI RM OF HADEN AND COLBERT
Brent E. Haden, Esquire

827 East Broadway, Suite B

Col unmbi a, M ssouri 65201

Enai | : brent @hownel aw. com

Nancy Di ppell, Chief Regul atory Law Judge
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FOR THE PUBLI C AND THE OFFI CE OF THE PUBLI C COUNSEL:
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JUDGE DI PPELL: First, | would |ike to ask

everyone to mute your phone, unless you're speaking.
That cuts down on the noise | evel and prevents any
audi o feedback.

Today is March 6th, 2023. It is 6:00 p.m in the
evening. And the M ssouri Public Service Conmm ssion
has set this tinme for a virtual public hearing to give
nmenbers of the public a chance to comment about the
application in File Nunmber EA-2023-0017. That's
captioned: In the Matter of the Application of Gain
Belt Express LCC for an Anendnent to its Certificate of
Conveni ence and Necessity Authorizing it to Construct,
Owmn, Operate, Control, Mnage, and Maintain a Hi gh
Vol tage, Direct Current Transm ssion Line and
Associ ated Converter Station.

The M ssouri Public Service Comm ssion regul ates
the rates and services of investor-owned public utility
conpanies in Mssouri. The Comm ssion ensures the
public has access to safe, reliable, and reasonably
priced utility service. The Conm ssion nust bal ance
the interest of the public, the rate payers, as well as
t he conpany sharehol ders. The conpany also -- |I'm
sorry. The Comm ssion also regulates the quality of
service and the safety of operations of public

utilities in the State of M ssouri.
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The Comm ssion is made up of five conm ssioners.

The conmm ssioners are appointed by the governor to
fixed terns and confirned by the M ssouri Senate. The
Comm ssioners enploy a staff of engineers, accountants,
attorneys, financial analysts and other specialists in
the field of utility regul ation.

My nane is Nancy D ppell, and I'mthe regul atory
| aw judge presiding over this hearing this evening.

W're neeting virtually via WbEx tel ephone and
I nternet conferencing.

Online with nme tonight are the Public Service
Comm ssi oners, Chairman Rupp. Comm ssioner Col eman is
probably going to be signing in any second, if she's
not there already.

COW R COLEMAN: | am here, Judge.

JUDGE DI PPELL: On, thank you, Comm ssioner.

COMW R COLEMAN:  You're wel cone.

JUDGE DI PPELL: Comm ssi oner Hol sman and
Comm ssi oner Kol kneyer .

This is an official hearing of the Mssouri Public
Servi ce Conm ssion, and the statenents and testinony of
Wi tnesses will be recorded by a court reporter and nust
be given under oath or affirmation.

The Comm ssi on has not nmade any decisions in this

case, and neither the conmm ssioners nor nyself can
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answer any questions about the issues of the case today

because the Conm ssion nust remain inpartial until
after all the evidence is presented.

M. Chairman, would you like to give sone opening
remar ks?

CHAl RMAN RUPP:  Yeah. Sure, Judge.

| just wanted to thank everybody for being here
today and signing on so that we can get your input on,
you know, this very inportant issue that's before us.
Pl ease, you know, give us the information that you want
us to take back with us and to help deliberate on this
I Ssue.

The one thing though that the judge said that | do
want to repeat is that everything you say will be put
into the court record, which we wll have access to
transcripts, even though I know all the Comm ssioners
are online as well, but we can also go back and review
those transcripts as wel | .

The second thing she also said is that we are
unabl e to answer any questions. So we are here to
listen, to try to understand what the sentinent is for
this project and to listen and to take all that into
our consideration. But, unfortunately, we cannot
comment. W cannot answer questions. So if you do

pose a question to us, unfortunately, you wll not get
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a response. But with that, we do want to hear

everything you have to say. W appreciate you taking
time out of your schedules to informus of your

opi nions and just | ook forward to all the participation
this evening. Thank you.

JUDCGE DI PPELL: And woul d any of the other
comm ssioners |like to nmake any opening coments?

COW R HOLSMAN:  Judge, this is Comm ssioner
Hol sman. | just want to say we're grateful for them
taking the tinme to share their opinions with us. It
does matter and we do listen. So thank you very nuch.

JUDGE DI PPELL: Thank you, Conm ssi oner.

Okay. Then before we begin with the testinony, 1'd
like to get entries of appearance fromthe parties to
the case that want to nake their entries.

If you're dialed in on a phone, you may have to
unnmut e your phone, as well as you m ght have to press
star 6 to unnute the m crophone.

Let's begin. Is there anyone with staff?

MR. VANDERGCRI FF:  Good eveni ng, Judge, and
everyone. |'mEric Vandergriff. [|'mrepresenting
staff for the Mssouri Public Service Commssion. |'m
| ocated at PO Box 360, 200 Madi son Street, Jefferson
City 65102.

JUDGE DI PPELL: Thank you.
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Ofice of the Public Counsel ?

MR, WLLIAMS: Thank you. Nathan WIIians,
appeari ng on behalf of the public and the Ofice of the
Public Counsel. My contact information is PO Box 2230,
Jefferson City, Mssouri 65102.

JUDGE DI PPELL: Grain Belt Express?

MS. CALLENBACH: Good eveni ng, Judge,

Chai rman Rupp, Conm ssioner Hol sman, Conm ssi oner
Kol kneyer, and Conmi ssi oner Col eman.

This is Anne Cal |l enbach and Andrew Schul te,
appeari ng on behalf of the Applicant, Gain Belt
Express LLC

JUDCGE DI PPELL: And are there any
I ntervenors who wanted to put an entry of appearance
on?

MR, HADEN: Judge, this is Brent Haden.
Sorry.

JUDGE DI PPELL: kay.

SPEAKER: Go ahead.

MR. HADEN. Judge, this is Brent Haden here,
appeari ng on behal f of Agricultural Associations, and
| --

JUDGE DI PPELL: Al right. Thank you.

G ahead. |I'msorry. | cut you off.
MR. HADEN. | was just going to tell you,
888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
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that, but do plan to be back on for Thursday. But I
just wanted to |l et you know that ahead of tine, here.

JUDCGE DI PPELL: kay. Thank you.

MR. HADEN: Thank you.

JUDGE DI PPELL: There was soneone el se who
wanted to nmake an entry.

SPEAKER: Thank you. This is --

JUDGE DI PPELL: We're having a bit of
troubl e understanding you. |Is that M. Agathen? Can
you try it again?

( Speaker's audi o not com ng through.)

JUDGE DI PPELL: I'msorry. It's still

different |ine?
( Speaker's audi o not com ng through.)
JUDCGE DIPPELL: I'msorry. W really can't
understand. Let ne just ask again. |If this is
M. Agat hen, would you speak now?
SPEAKER:  Yes.
JUDGE DI PPELL: Okay. Al right. If you
can hang up and call back in at a |later point, we can

get your entry. And if you want to send ne an emil,

. Page 8
for the in-person tonorrow, | actually have a
scheduling conflict. 1've got to bench try a case in
Mont gonmery County tonmorrow. So | wll not be there for

garbled. Can you maybe hang up and try calling in on a
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can let the court reporter know who was appeari ng.

| s there anyone el se that would |ike to nake an
entry? Ckay.
MR. GAINES: This is --

JUDGE DI PPELL: [|'msorry?
MR GAINES. I|I'msorry. I'malittle bit
late on chimng in. |'mDavid Gaines from Gol dstone

Consulting Goup in Mberly, Mssouri, and would |ike
to, at the proper tinme, speak on behalf of the project.

JUDGE DI PPELL: Okay. Wen we get to the
public comments, then you can. 1'Il call for
addi ti onal conmments.

MR. GAINES: Thank you

JUDGE DI PPELL: Let ne go through the rest

of this.

If there's no other parties that need to -- and by
parties, | nmean direct parties that have intervened in
the case. So if there's nobody else, then we wll go
ahead.

So the process we're going to follow tonight is
that I'"'mgoing to call the nanes listed on -- we had a
preregistration sign-up. |I'mgoing to call those nanes
first to testify. Wwen | call your nane, please go
ahead and unnmute your phone, and if you need to unnute

the m crophone, it's star 6. And I'll ask you to swear
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or affirmto tell the truth, and then I'I|l ask you to

state and spell your nanme for the court reporter. And
then you can give your comments to the Conm ssion.

And so that we can hear from everybody who woul d
like to speak, comments will be limted to five m nutes
per person. So | may interrupt you if your coments go
long. |If you're unable to conplete your coments
before the tinme has expired, you can submt those
coments in witing by going to psc.no.gov. SO
psc. no. gov, or by calling the Conm ssion's Consuner
Services hotline at 1(800)392-4211.

So please remain on the line after you' ve given
your remarks. There could be followup questions from
t he conm ssioners or nyself. And if the attorneys have
any clarifying questions, they can |let ne know at that
tinme,

After the preregistration |ist sign-up has
testified -- and I only have nine -- or, I'msorry --
five names on that list right now After those people
have testified, then I'Il ask if there's any other
W tnesses that wwsh to testify. And it may take a
little bit of juggling to get everybody one at a tine,

but it ends up working out.

So I'll take comments then from anyone that woul d
li ke to speak, and we'll stay online until everyone's
888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
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had a chance. Also -- well, | think that's actually
all | had to say, except that for those of you who are
|l ogged in on the internet, | would not recomend using

the chat feature, as it may or may not be nonitored
such that you get any answers, but it will be -- and
the whole video call and tel ephone call is being
recorded, as well as the court reporter taking it down,
and that wll be transcribed and put in the record.

So, with that, we can go ahead and begin with
testinmony. So the first person | have on ny list is
Mae G aham

|s Mae Grahamon the line? Oh, there she. You can
unnmut e yoursel f.

M5. GRAHAM | ' m here.

JUDCGE DI PPELL: Al right. If you would
rai se your hand, if you're able. And do you solemly
swear or affirmthe testinony you' re about to give wll
be the truth?

M5. GRAHAM | do.

JUDCGE DI PPELL: Thank you.

Coul d you state your nane and spell it for the
court reporter?

M5. GRAHAM Mae, M a-e; G aham
Gr-a-h-a-m

JUDGE DI PPELL: Thank you. Go ahead and

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
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gi ve us your comments.
M5. GRAHAM Ckay. |'mfrom Macon, and, as
you know -- and |I'mnot sure. |'mtalking about the

Grain Belt Express, and | don't know if that's what
everybody is tonight, or not.

JUDCGE DI PPELL: That's what we're talking
about this evening.

M5. GRAHAM And excuse ny cough

We're one of -- Macon is one of the 39 cities that

Is signed up to be on the Gain Belt Express. They, at
the nonent, make their own energy, and it's kind of
high. And I'mon disability and a fixed incone, and
the cost of everything that has been rising has ne
concerned, and utilities are really high right now.
And I'mnore than concerned. |'mactually -- I'm
scared because | don't know what's going to happen.
And | amfor the Gain Belt Express and hope that it
can help us. Thank you. |'m done.

JUDCGE DI PPELL: Gkay. Thank you for your
conmment .

M5. GRAHAM But | have to ask you, when |I'm
done, do | stay on, or do | click it off?

JUDGE DI PPELL: After you're done, |'m going
to ask if the conm ssioners have any questions for you.

And then once we do that, if they don't, you re wel cone
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to stay or you're welcone to leave. It's up to you.

M5. GRAHAM  Ckay. Thank you.

JUDGE DI PPELL: Is there anything from any
of the comm ssioners for Ms. G ahanf

Ckay. Thank you, Ms. Graham W appreciate your
t esti nony.

M5. GRAHAM  You're wel cone.

JUDGE DI PPELL: The next nane | have on ny
list is Susan Goodman. |Is Ms. Goodman on this, on the
line? You may have to push star 6. There.

s that Ms. Goodman?

M5. WDEMAN: It doesn't do anything. It
says they're not able to do that.

JUDCGE DI PPELL: Is that Ms. Goodman
speaki ng?

M5. WDEMAN: |'msorry?

JUDGE DI PPELL: Is that Ms. Goodman?

M5. WDEMAN:. Wdeman. M nane i s Susan
W denman.

JUDCGE DI PPELL: On, okay.

M5. WDEMAN. S-u-s-a-n, Wi-d-e-ma-n.

JUDGE DI PPELL: Okay. M. Wdenman, woul d
you pl ease raise your right hand, if you' re able?

M5. W DEMAN:  Yes.

JUDGE DI PPELL: Do you solemly swear or

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required Nevada Registration #116F. LEXITAS
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affirmthe testinony you' re about to give at this

hearing will be the truth?

M5. W DEMAN:  Yes.

JUDCGE DI PPELL: kay. Go ahead and give us
your comrents.

M5. WDEMAN: Okay. M nane is Susan
Wdeman. | reside in St. Louis County, M ssouri.
inherited a little under 80 acres from ny nother when
she passed away. M great grandparents owned 160 acres
originally. | amthe fourth-generation ower of this
property.

The Tiger Connect transm ssion line, as presently
proposed, appears to dissect ny property on a diagonal.
The project creates a large footprint which reduces ny
vi abl e acreage to plant corn and soybeans. This wll
reduce revenue for nyself, as well as the person who
farms it for me. Qur agreenent was set up between
previ ous generations to split 50/50 costs, as well as
revenue fromwhat i s produced.

Additionally, fromthe tinme the property passed to
nme, |'ve received nunmerous offers to purchase the
entire parcel of land. The proposed route has becone
public knowl edge. | am now receiving offers of buying
only 40 acres of the property. Tiger Connect

transm ssion line has already essentially cut the worth
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of ny property in half, but it is not yet approved.

| amtotally opposed to approval of the Tiger
Connect transmssion line. M hope is it will not be
approved, but, if it is approved, I am asking that the
proposed route be changed and not cross ny snall parcel
at all. | do not wsh this on anyone, but there are
many people in Audrain County ow ng nany nore acres
than I who would not be as inpacted with a 50 percent
| oss of value or ability to farmtheir property as |
woul d be.

| have truly felt targeted because of ny snall
anount of property, as well as the fact | amnot in
Audrain County. It has been very difficult to try and
get information on what is happening with this entire
project, as well as where electricity will eventually
be transported to if it is approved. Thank you.

JUDGE DI PPELL: Thank you.

Comm ssi oners, are there any questions?

Al right. Hearing none, we'll nove on.

Now | did actually have a Susan Goodman si gned up.
And |'I|l offer again. |Is M. Goodnan on the |ine?

kay. Ms. Goodnman, | believe that is you that
keeps trying to speak, but |I'mnot hearing anything.
"' mnot sure why we're not. |'mhearing sound, but I'm

not hearing any voice. So if that is you trying to
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speak, | woul d suggest maybe you try hangi ng up and
calling in on a different -- oh, wait a m nute.
Sonebody? | heard a voice. Al right. If you have
difficulty, I would suggest naybe trying to just call

in on the tel ephone nunber and giving it a second shot.
So let's nove on. Marilyn O Bannon. |s Marilyn on

the line?

M5. O BANNON: | sure am Can you hear ne
okay?

JUDGE DI PPELL: Yes, we can. Thank you.

Coul d you pl ease raise your right hand, if you're

abl e?

MS. O BANNON: Yes, mm' am

JUDGE DI PPELL: Do you solemmly swear or
affirmthe testinony you' re about to give at this
hearing wll be the truth?

MS. O BANNON:  Yes.

JUDGE DI PPELL: Thank you. If you could
state and spell your nane.

M5. O BANNON: My nane is Marilyn O Bannon,
Ma-r-i-l-y-n, O'-B-a-n-n-o-n.

JUDGE DI PPELL: Thank you. Go ahead and
gi ve us your conments.

M5. O BANNON: Ckay. Good evening,

M. Chairman and nenbers of the M ssouri Public Service
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Conm ssi on.

" m from Monroe County. My famly and | are
| andowners on the proposed Gain Belt Express route in
Monroe County and have farmed near the Tiger Connector
spur in Audrain County.

| oppose the Grain Belt Express project and the
amended application. Phase 1 of the Gain Belt Express
wi Il place the converter station approxi mately one-half
mle fromny hone. Gain Belt will tell you they have
a | arge percentage of easenents needed for the project
that they have secured voluntarily. But | argue the
maj ority were because of the threat of em nent domain
and potential condemation |awsuits.

Grain Belt cannot build any wind turbines in Kansas
until the project is approved in Illinois. However,
Grain Belt is working and even pressuring | andowners to
sign easenents. One Am sh famly told ne the | and
agent said if they didn't sign the easenent agreenent,
they would go to court and not get paid anything. It
concerns nme that Grain Belt is focused on easenents
before knowing if they can even build the project or
have the financial capability.

In the order of the original CCN Case, the PSC
granted G ain Belt's application with certain

conditions. One condition was that G ain Belt was not
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permtted to install transmssion facilities on

easenent property in Mssouri until obtaining
commtnents for financing of the project in an equal
anount to or greater than the total cost to build the
entire nultistate transm ssion project.

I n m d- Decenber 2022, Grain Belt applied for a
federal guaranteed |oan fromthe Departnent of Energy
to finance their project, and during the EI'S Public
Hearing had information stating they anti ci pated
approval of the Tiger Connector by the PSC.

Merchant Transmi ssion, |like Gain Belt Express, is
an unregul ated voluntary specul ative venture for
private profit purpose. It is not needed for regional
reliability or economcs. Merchant can cancel its
project at any tinme. Also, because Gain Belt rates
are unregul ated, there is nothing requiring the
merchant to put the easenment it had acquired into
public service. Ganting emnent donmain authority to
unregul ated nerchants for specul ative projects that may
never be placed in service violates the requirenent
that property be taken for public use.

Qur famly considers ourselves to be good stewards
of the land. The investnent in our |and goes beyond
the price paid for it because of the sustainable

farm ng practices used to maintain soil for its highest
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productivity. |In a sustainable world, all |and would

serve its highest and best purpose. Sustainable
practices do not include chopping up the property for a
gigantic transmssion line. And it does not seemlike
a W se decision to cross through the mddle of farns as
it is for our farm

Grain Belt Express project plans to excavate new
cenent to secure transm ssion towers. Cenent is one of
the main producers of carbon dioxide, a potent
gr eenhouse gas. Concrete causes damage to the nost
fertile layer of the soil, the topsoil. Concrete is
used to create hard surfaces which contribute to
surface runoff that may cause soil erosion, water

pollution and fl ooding. Topsoil and keeping nutrients

inthe soil is vital to crop production. M famly
relies on crop production to stay -- to stay going with
our -- that's how we nmake a living. So how can G ain

Belt mnimze soil conpaction when the route is through
the mddle of fields? And Gain Belt has testified
that they wll build tenporary roads across the fields
to get to the easenent.

Soi |l conpaction is so negative to farm production
that farmers plant a cover crop in the fall to keep the
soil fromconpacting. The soil health will be ruined

not just on the easenent, but everywhere the
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construction equi pnent crosses on the field. There is

no puni shnment for damage Grain Belt nmay do to our |and
in the heat of the nonent. W would have to fight for
what ever Grain Belt's non-farmng | awers and
executives think is an adequate conpensati on.
Conpensation can never return the land to its forner
condi ti on.

The future of elimnating greenhouse gas is through
soil health and | ess destruction of the soil. The
destruction of soil health nentioned in the above
par agraphs prohibits the m ssion of those in
agriculture working to neet the standards of inproving
soi | health.

We figure there is no conpensation that could be
equal to potential incone and the soil production
| osses for our lifetinme and generations to foll ow.
There woul d be no future for other |and uses on this
property with a transm ssion line the size of Gain
Belt Express. Basically, our investnent costs for
years of conservation practices and soil health wll
| eave us with nothing but a | ower |and val ue.
According to Natural Resources Institute, we |ose
nearly 40 acres of farm and every hour in the US
because of devel opnent. O course, that's not all

transm ssi on.
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| just ask that you consider agriculture being our

nunber one industry in the state and what it neans to
us in agriculture. W're a farmng famly of several
generations. W're nowin the fifth generation, and we
have over five mles in Monroe County, and it's going
to border or our farmin Audrain County.
| respectfully request the Public Service
Comm ssion to deny Grain Belt Express LLC anendnent to
the application, and | thank you for your tine.
JUDGE DI PPELL: Thank you.
Comm ssi oners, are there any questions for
Ms. O Bannon?
COW R HOLSMAN:  No questions, Judge. Thank

you.
JUDCGE DI PPELL: Thank you, Comm ssi oner
Hol sman.
Al right. Then, thank you, Ms. O Bannon, for your
t esti nony.
The next person | have preregistered is Jack
Mei nzenbach. 1|s there a Jack Meinzenbach on the |ine?
Ch, there, | believe.
MR, MElI NZENBACH:  Yes.
JUDGE DI PPELL: Thank you.
MR. MEI NZENBACH: Good eveni ng.
JUDGE DI PPELL: Coul d you pl ease raise your
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ri ght hand?

Do you solemmly swear or affirmthat the testinony

you're about to give at this hearing wll be the truth?
MR MEI NZENBACH: | do.
JUDGE DI PPELL: Thank you.

| f you could state your nane and then spell it for

the court reporter.

MR. MEI NZENBACH: My nicknane is Jack
Mei nzenbach. My real nane is John, J-o0-h-n; |ast nane
Is Me-i-n-z-e-n-b-a-c-h.

JUDGE DI PPELL: Thank you.

MR. MEINZENBACH:. | live in Col unbia,
M ssouri .

JUDGE DI PPELL: Go ahead wth your comments.

MR, MElI NZENBACH: Ckay. Well, | want to
give testinony to your Comm ssion supporting the Grain
Belt Express request to extend their project with the
Ti ger Connector.

The Ti ger Connector and future possible extensions
of the Grain Belt Express project are very inportant
for increasing transm ssion capacity that will allow
M ssouri to accelerate our transition to clean and
renewabl e energy. It wll also nove our state away
fromdirty, expensive fossil fuels that are used to

produce over 70 percent of Mssouri's electrical power
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today. It is estimated that the extended project wll

| oner energy and capacity costs in Mssouri by around

6 percent for 40 years, saving residents over

$17 billion in energy costs. The benefits go far
beyond energy bill savings. According to expert
testinmony, Mssouri wll enjoy social and health

benefits, including em ssion reductions worth over
$7 billion.

The Departnent of Energy explains that 70 percent
of our nation's current electrical grid is over
25 years old, which is aliability to the safety,
security and reliability of our country. New
transm ssion is necessary to prevent rolling blackouts,
create redundancy in case of attacks or failures,
reduce costs and preserve our way of life.

The M dconti nent | ndependent System Operator, M SO,
that provides the high voltage transm ssion systemin
the M dwest |acks sufficient capacity to add renewabl e
energy projects to their grid w thout a nmajor upgrade.

I n 2021, congestion on the M SO electrical grid

I npacted energy prices in the market, which contributed
to higher costs for Colunbia Water and Light. This

vol atility was created by weather, as well as regional
transm ssion and thernmal generation rel ated nmai ntenance

and outages. In 2021, Boone Stephens Sol ar term nated
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their contract with Colunbia Water and Light to build a

64 nmegawatt solar field north of the city because it
was no | onger financially viable on the M SO gri d.

Col unmbia, Mssouri will be unable to achieve their
goal to accelerate transition to 100 percent renewabl e
energy by 2030 without the Tiger Connector fromthe
Grain Belt Express. W are only at 15 percent right
now versus a goal of 25 percent in 2023 because of the
contract cancellation, and we just -- the Gain Belt
has drug on for too nmany years.

Pl ease approve this request to add the Tiger
Connect or and keep M ssouri noving forward toward our
goal s of much nore clean and renewabl e energy capacity.

Thank you.

JUDCGE DI PPELL: Thank you.

Any questions fromthe conm ssioners?

Al right. Thank you, M. Meinzenbach.

MR, MEI NZENBACH: You're wel cone.

JUDCGE DI PPELL: Okay. I|I'mgoing to try one
nore tinme for Ms. Goodman before | nove on to opening
it up. |Is Ms. Goodman on the line? GCkay. |'mnot
heari ng anyt hi ng.

Al right. So, at this point then, we can
open it up for anyone who would |like to give conments .

And |'ve had one gentleman say that he's interested,
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M. Gaines. And |I'mgoing to go ahead, just since |

know that he's wanting to speak, and |et himgo next,
and then we'll take the next person. So we'll --

MR, GAINES: Good evening. |'m David
Gai nes.

JUDGE DI PPELL: GOkay. Can | get you --

MR GAI NES.: Yes, please.

JUDGE DI PPELL: Can | swear you in first?

MR. GAI NES:. Pl ease.

JUDGE DI PPELL: Would you raise your right
hand, if you're able?

Do you solemly swear or affirmthat the testinony

you' re about to give at this hearing wll be the truth?

MR GAINES: | do.

JUDCGE DI PPELL: And if you could spell your
nane for the court reporter.

MR GAINES: David, common spelling. The
| ast nane is Gaines, Ga-i-n-e-s.

JUDCGE DI PPELL: Gkay. Go ahead with your
coments, M. Gaines.

MR, GAINES. Well, first of all, let ne
t hank the Comm ssion as a whole, and you as well,
Madam for the opportunity to speak. | think it is a
very inportant foundation of who we are in Mssouri to

all ow fol ks with opposing opinions to share their
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points of view and sone very valid concerns from both

sides of the community.

| cone today to speak to you in behalf -- or in
favor of this project. As an econon c devel opnent and
site selection consultant, we're |ooking, on behalf of
our clientele, the long-termrange of what a project
like this would do to energy costs, energy availability
and stability of the electric supply into the various
conmmuni ti es throughout M ssouri.

So |l will just conclude ny brief remarks by saying,
t hank you again, and | would encourage the Comm ssion
to support this project. Thank you.

JUDGE DI PPELL: Thank you.

Are there any conm ssioner questions for
M. Gaines?

Al right. Then we can nove on to the next
wtness. |If you would like to give comments, just go
ahead and unmute your phone or your internet
connection. |If you are purely on the phone, you may
have to hit star 6. Wo would like to speak next?

| have 44 participants on the line. So | know
there nust be soneone el se who would |Iike to give
coments. OCh, there we go. W have a taker.

MR SMTH  Yes. Good eveni ng.
JUDGE DI PPELL: Can | get you to raise your
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right hand and I'I|l swear you in?
Do you solemly swear or affirmthe testinony
you're about to give at this hearing wll be the truth?

MR SMTH Yes, | do.

JUDCGE DI PPELL: kay. Go ahead and state
your nanme and spell it for the court reporter.

MR SMTH Yes. M nane is Brian,
B-r-i-a-n, last nane is Smth, Smi-t-h

JUDGE DI PPELL: GCkay. Go ahead with your
coment s.

MR SMTH Yes. | want to thank the Public
Service Conm ssion for this opportunity to speak. And
acrinony to M. Gaines' thoughts, it's very good to
have a heal t hy exchange of ideas, you know, from both
sides of the issue. And the testinony tonight from
both sides has been great so far.

| " m speaking in favor of the Public Service

Comm ssion granting, you know, the extension requested
by the Grain Belt Express. This is a critically
I nportant project that will inprove great resilience,
reduce custoner costs, create jobs, increase the tax
base for rural communities and reduce dangerous power
pl ant em ssions that will inprove public health. And,
you know, well, one of the big things is -- and |

believe M. Minzenbach referred to this sone, and |'m
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not going to double-up here. But, you know, it wll

relieve pressure on our aging, vulnerable grid and
provi de affordabl e renewabl e energy to M ssouri
resi dents.

It's good for Mssouri nunicipalities because it
wi |l provide jobs, attract businesses with clean energy
goals, add to the tax base of rural communities,

provide | owcost energy to cities. And, you know, in

the past there's been, |like, for instance, you know, on
t he muni ci pal benefits, it could include 10 -- a
truncated list of this includes $10 mllion in sales
and property taxes for Chariton County; half a mllion

dollars to the education of 3,000 -- over 3,700
students in Randol ph County, and $142 mllion a year
for savings in, you know, soneplace |ike Shel bina.
Al so, the city of Kirkwood and St. Louis -- you know,
rural and urban. The city of Kirkwood will be able to
reach its clean energy goals. And, so, you know,
that's just a few of the benefits of it.

And, so, you know, |I'mbasically strongly in favor
of this and really hope that the Public Service
Comm ssion, you know, allows this, you know, very
I nportant project to grow and extend, and, you know,
because many M ssourians wll benefit fromthis. And

t hank you very nuch for the opportunity to speak.
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JUDCGE DI PPELL: Thank you, M. Smth.

Are there any conm ssioner questions for M. Smth?

Al right. |Is there anyone else who would |ike to
testify? 1'mgoing to sound |ike a broken record, but
If you're on the phone, you not only have to unnute
your phone, but also press star 6 to unnute the
m cr ophone.

| s there anyone else? WlIlIl, |I'mnot hearing anyone
el se or seeing anyone el se.

MR. W DEMAN: Judge Dippell, can you hear

JUDGE DI PPELL: Yes. Yes, | can.
MR. W DEMAN. Okay. Thank you.
This is Gary W denman.

JUDGE DI PPELL: Oh, okay. Wuld you like to
give coments, M. Wdenan, as well?

MR. W DEMAN: Yes, Judge, | would |like to.

JUDGE DI PPELL: kay. Raise your right
hand, if you're able.

MR WDEMAN. Yes, ma'am |It's raised.

JUDCGE DI PPELL: Do you solemmly swear or
affirmthat the testinony you' re about to give at this
hearing wll be the truth?

MR. W DEMAN: Yes, thank you.

JUDGE DI PPELL: Okay. |If you could again
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state your nane and spell it.

MR. WDEMAN: Yes. Again, this is Gary
Wdeman, Wi-d-e-ma-n. |'mthe husband of Susan
W deman who spoke earlier.

JUDGE DI PPELL: Ckay. Go ahead.

MR. WDEMAN:. kay. | know the two
gentl eman that were heavily in favor of this project
and they had lots of statistics and studies that they
were quoting. | have not seen any of those studies,
but let's make the assunption that what they're saying
Is correct. If it is, I'massumng they probably don't
own farm and where this would be inpacted. M
understanding that how this inpacts the farmand is
with a |arge base that would be placed upon varying
parts of the line where it crosses, or whatever,
i npacting a small farm

But | do want to ask a question or pose a thought
here. |If all these facts are true and if so inportant,
you know, that we do this and it needs to be approved,
woul d Grain Belt Express consider burying these |lines
so it does not inpact all the small farm and?
That's ny comment, Judge.

JUDGE DI PPELL: Okay. Thank you for your

conmment .

|s there anything fromthe conm ssioners for
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M. Wdeman?

Ckay. Thank you very nuch for your comment.
| s there anyone el se who would |ike to speak?
MR GRAHAM |'d |like to say sonet hing.
JUDCGE DI PPELL: kay. Wbuld you pl ease
rai se your right hand, if you're able?
Do you solemly swear or affirmto tell the truth?
MR, GRAHAM  Yes.
JUDGE DI PPELL: Would you pl ease spell your
nanme for the court reporter?
MR GRAHAM  Matthew Graham Ma-t-t-h-e-w,
and then G aham Gr-a-h-a-m
JUDCGE DI PPELL: kay. Go ahead, M. G aham
MR. GRAHAM  For full transparency, | don't
have land in Mssouri. Al | was tuning in to say is
that | appreciate the opportunity that we get as
M ssourians to tal k about this issue. And then, also,
as we're considering this, | think, this is a chance
for us to see that we have a chance to be a part of a
bi gger picture than just our individual |ives.

This line will undoubtedly affect people in |lots of
ways, both positive and negative, as we've heard. But
| do think that if we | ook at ourselves as being a part
of the greater network of people, it feels good to know

that we -- not just with this, but in general, we have
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chances to change the infrastructure in ways that is

going to positively inpact future generations. And so
| do think that we need to think very critically about
the downsides of this, and I think we need to listen to
peopl e that are personally affected. And, yeah, |
t hi nk exploring other options |ike underground lines is
i nportant, while also taking into account costs of
those alternative options, to see how feasi bl e those
things would be. But that's it. Thanks.

JUDGE DI PPELL: Gkay. Can | ask you,
M. Gaham you said you don't own land in M ssouri.

MR GRAHAM |I'min Colunmbia. I'min
Col unbia. Sorry.

JUDGE DI PPELL: Okay. You do live in

M ssouri ?

MR GRAHAM Yes, | live in Col unbia.

JUDGE DI PPELL: Ckay.

MR. GRAHAM Yeah. I1've lived in Mssouri
nmy entire life. | guess ny -- yeah, ny famly has,
yeah, but. ..

JUDCGE DI PPELL: Thank you.
Are there any questions for M. G ahamfromthe
comm ssi oners?
Ckay. Thank you for your conment.

| s there anyone el se who would |Iike to speak? One
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nore offer. Anyone el se?

Ckay. Well, | do thank everyone who parti ci pated,
who testified, or who just called in to |listen and
those that naybe are listening on the web stream

| f you wanted to give coments but were too shy or
couldn't get technology to work for you, please go
ahead and send us your witten comments. You can do
that on the website at psc.no.gov, or you can call our
consuner services nunber. That's 1(800)392-4211, and
t hey can | odge your comment, which also goes into the
file for this case.

Comm ssi oners, did you have any cl osing remarks
that you wanted to make?

CHAI RMAN RUPP: No, thank you, Judge. Just
appreci ate everybody's coments and thanks for your
wel | -run heari ng.

JUDGE DI PPELL: Thank you.

| appreciate how polite everyone was and
reasonable. And | again thank you on behalf of the
Comm ssion for your participation. It's really
i nportant that everyone is able to participate in their
gover nnent .

So, wth that, | believe, we are concluded, and we
can go off the record. Thank you.

(The hearing concludes at 6:46 p.m)
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CERTI FI CATE
I, Christine M Cdark, RPR, hereby certify that
| reported the M ssouri Public Service Conmm ssion
Renote Public Meeting on this 6th day of March 2023,
concerning the matter aforesaid;

That | was then and there a notary public;

That the foregoing transcript is a true and
correct transcript of ny stenographic notes in said
matter, transcribed under ny direction and control;

That | amnot related to any of the parties
hereto, nor interested in the outcone of the action and
have no contract with any parties, attorneys or persons
wth an interest in the action that has a substanti al
tendency to affect ny inpartiality;

W TNESS MY HAND AND SEAL this 15th day of March
2023.

i M (Gt
(:LLu;ti;a
Christine M O ark, RPR
Not ary Public
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